TAYLOR BROTHERS – ORWOOD AND JACK

SAPPER ORWOOD NORMAN WILLIAM TAYLOR
1190 – 3rd Tunnelling Company
Horwood Norman William Taylor was born at Westbury, Tasmania on 24 May, 1892 to John Thomas and Catherine Jane (nee Garrett) Taylor.  He had been previously been rejected for active service due to defective teeth.  He was working at Wynyard, Tas in 1915 as a miner.
At the recruiting depot at Ross, Tas (6th Military District) the twenty-three-year-old single miner applied to enlist for active service abroad and passed the medical examination.  His Christian name on enlistment was spelt incorrectly as Orwood but served under that name.  Attestation forms describe him as 182cms (5ft 11¼ins), weighing 70kgs (154lbs) with a chest expansion of 89-97cms (35-38ins) and had a fair complexion with good vision in his blue eyes and fair hair.  Church of England was his religion.  Next-of-kin nominated was his mother Mrs Catherine Taylor of Wynyard, Tas.  The Oath of Allegiance was signed and taken at Ross on 1 November, 1915.

Acknowledgment to the new recruits was published in the:
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After basic training he was assigned on 16 December, 1915 to the No. 3 Company of the Mining Corps at Claremont camp and the volunteers from Tasmania were transferred to join others from across the country at Casula camp, near Liverpool, New South Wales for final training as a Corps.  His rank was Sapper with the regimental number 1190 and remained in No. 3 Company.
At a civic parade in the Domain, Sydney on Saturday February 19, 1916, a large crowd of relations and friends of the departing Miners lined the four sides of the parade ground.  Sixty police and 100 Garrison Military Police were on hand to keep the crowds within bounds.  The scene was an inspiriting one. On the extreme right flank, facing the saluting base, were companies of the Rifle Club School; next came a detachment of the 4th King’s Shropshire Light Infantry, then the bands of the Light Horse, Liverpool Depot, and the Miners’ on the left, rank upon rank, the Miners’ Battalion.  

The Corps boarded HMAT A38 Ulysses in Sydney, NSW on February 20 and sailed for the European theatre.  Arriving in Melbourne, Victoria on February 22 the Miners camped at Broadmeadows for a stay of 7 days while further cargo was loaded. 

Another parade was held at the Broadmeadows camp on March 1, the Miners’ Corps being inspected by the Governor-General, as Commander-in-Chief of the Commonwealth military forces. 

Leaving Melbourne on March 1, Ulysses arrived at Fremantle, Western Australia on March 7 where a further 53 members were taken on board.  

On Wednesday March 8, 1916 the whole force, with their band and equipment, paraded at Fremantle prior to leaving Victoria Quay at 9.30 o’clock.

The ship hit a reef when leaving Fremantle harbour, stripping the plates for 40 feet and, although there was a gap in the outside plate, the inner bilge plates were not punctured.  The men on board nicknamed her ‘Useless’.  
The Miners were off-loaded and sent to the Blackboy Hill Camp where further training was conducted.

The Mining Corps comprised 1303 members at the time they embarked with a Headquarters of 40; No.1 Company – 390; No.2 Company – 380; No.3 Company – 392, and 101 members of the 1st Reinforcements.

Finally departing Fremantle on April 1, Ulysses voyaged via Suez, Port Said and Alexandria in Egypt.  The captain of the ship was reluctant to take Ulysses out of the Suez Canal because he felt the weight of the ship made it impossible to manoeuvre in the situation of a submarine attack.  The troops were transhipped to HM Transport B.1 Ansonia, then on to Valetta, Malta before disembarking at Marseilles, France on May 5, 1916.  As a unit they entrained at Marseilles on May 7 and detrained on May 11 at Hazebrouck.

A ‘Mining Corps’ did not fit in the British Expeditionary Force, and the Corps was disbanded and three Australian Tunnelling Companies were formed.  The Technical Staff of the Corps Headquarters, plus some technically qualified men from the individual companies, was formed into the entirely new Australian Electrical and Mechanical Mining and Boring Company (AEMMBC), better known as the ‘Alphabetical Company.’
Sapper went sick on 2 June, 1916 suffering mumps to the 130th Field Ambulance then transferred to the No. 7 General Hospital at St Omer the next day.  He re-joined his unit on 5 July.

He wrote a letter home to his mother regarding the non-delivery of his comfort parcels which was reprinted in the:
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The No. 3 Company was officially transferred to the 3rd Tunnelling Company in the field on 18 December, 1916.
Sapper was wounded in action on 9 December, 1916 suffering a gunshot wound to his left hand and taken to the 1st Casualty Clearing Station and three days later admitted to the 1st Canadian General Hospital at Etaples.  On December 17 was invalided to England on the hospital ship Cambria from Calais entering the Norfolk War Hospital for further treatment of a gunshot wound (slight).  

Base Records regretted to advise his mother on 19 December that it was reported her son had been wounded (slight) and again let her know on 5 January, 1917 of his admittance to hospital in England.
His name was among those soldiers appearing in the Casualty List published in the:


Sapper was transferred on 3 January, 1917 to the 1st Aust Auxiliary Hospital at Harefield until discharged on 1 March to the No. 1 Command Depot at Perham Downs.  Two days later was classified with B1a debility.  Marched in to the Drafting Depot at Perham Downs on 19 March then to camp Headquarters a day later then to Nos 4 & 5 camps to recuperate.

He received from the Goldfields Ladies Club gifts of comfort with their thank-you letter re-printed in the:


Proceeded to France from Folkstone on 9 May, 1917 arriving at the Aust General Base Depot at Etaples the next day.  Left on May 17 to re-join his unit.

In June, 1917 he first met Marie Louise Chatard at the tea rooms owned by her mother at Bethune, France.

Service continued without further injury or illness and was issued with 3 Blue Chevrons to wear on his uniform for serving two years abroad on 20 February, 1918.  He was counted in an audit of the company as still serving on 26 April, 1918.  Proceeded on leave on 12 July, 1918 and returned to duty on July 20.
Sapper was with his unit when Peace was declared and the Tunnelling Companies remained on the front as part of the Army of Occupation assisting with rehabilitation of their districts by clearing roads and bridges of booby traps and delayed action mines left by the enemy.  His last payment was received in France on 14 January, 1919.

Another of his letter’s home to his mother was published in the:

While stationed at Lille in France on 25 January, 1919, Orwood Norman William Taylor (26) bachelor and soldier was married in Lapugnoy, France to Marie Louisa Chatard (26) a tailoress and spinster daughter of Alfred Chatard, bootmaker.  They were married by L’Officier de l’etat civil de la Mairie de Lapugnoy, Pas de Calais.  He had obtained fifteen days leave of absence but only allowed five days.
Orders were received on 10 March, 1919 to return to the Aust Infantry Base Depot in Havre and the soldiers left there on March 17 crossing to England and marching into the 2nd Training Brigade at Codford a day later.  On 10 April they marched out for No. 2 Group camp at Sutton Veny.

Sapper was due to embark for Australia on the Indarra but did not embark.
On 2 May, 1919 Sapper was granted indefinite leave to await the next family ship home and went to reside in France with his wife at Lapugnoy until due to sail for Australia.  Mrs Taylor later left Lapugnoy for Liverpool, England to join her husband.  
Accompanied by his wife, Sapper Taylor embarked for Australia on 8 August, 1919 on the H.T. Ceramic.  The troopship docked in Melbourne (3rd M.D.) on 26 September, 1919 with news of their arrival reported in:

Three days later the couple left for Tasmania.
Military Discharge was issued in Hobart (6th M.D.) on 28 November, 1919 as medically unfit.

The 6th Military District, Hobart forwarded to Base Records on 19 December, 1919 medical board proceedings with dates of return and discharge.

A couple of months later the returned soldier was under some suspicion by the Aust Imperial Force in London as he may have been an imposter and sent inquiries to Base Records on 10 January, 1920 who in turn contacted Anglesea Barracks, Hobart.  They sent Area Officer Captain J. Armstrong? (signature difficult to read) to Burnie to interview the ex-soldier.  His report is as follows:

Staff Officer for Invalid and Returned Soldiers, 6th Military District

I interviewed today the person claiming to be 1190 Sapper O.N.W. TAYLOR 3rd A.T.C.

The person interviewed, is the writer of the letter outlining the complaint, which is the subject of inquiry, and is without a doubt the aforementioned soldier.

The only reason that this Soldier can advance to account for his statement being queried, is the fact that when embarking on transport “Ceramic” to return to Australia, he arrived at that vessel, just immediately before sailing time and that probably his name had been removed from the Embarkation Roll.  TAYLOR also states that his Christian name “ORWOOD” is sometimes show on Records as “HORWOOD” and that matter of fact, such is his correct name but Attestation Paper shows, “ORWOOD”, which he understood at time of enlistment to be correct.

This soldier returned to Australia accompanied by his wife.

Bank Pass Book of this man (Comm’th Savings Bank, Launceston No.04010) shows the following amounts paid in, and which this Soldier states were paid in by Pay Staff Hobart:


Oct. 27th 1919

£24/9/-  


Jany 8th 1920

£  4/16/1


Jany 13th 1920

£ 17/4/6


Feby 4th 1920

£ 22/0/9

£19/10 of the latter amount is said to be portion of Allotment money which was previously unpaid, and was forwarded as a result of his previous complaint.

The only complaint that this Soldier now appears to have, is the fact of him not being sure whether his “Leave Gratuity” has been paid or not.

This Soldiers statement discloses that three amounts have been paid to him since the date of complaint, which is the subject of this communication.

Burnie 18/3/20


Area Officer Capt. 12 B b

To Base Records, Melbourne

Forwarded in connection with your memo, dated the 19th February, 1920.

The delay in reply is due to Taylor residing at a locality difficult of access.

There appears to be no doubt that the impersonation alleged is without foundation.

Hobart 23/3/1920




Captain Davis   S.O.I.& R.S. 6th Military District






For three months the couple stayed with his mother and family at Wynyard before going to a farm seven miles away where they remained for two years.  They were unsuccessful as farmers and Mrs Taylor then went into partnership with a boarding house proprietor as her husband was receiving a war pension of £2 4 shillings a fortnight unable to gain employment.  Due to ill health Mrs Taylor was unable to continue at the boarding house and she and her husband set up a mixed business at Wynyard in which she served in the shop and her husband obtained casual work at sawmills nearby.  
The British War Medal (4049) and the Victory Medal (4038) were issued to Sapper 1190 Orwood Norman William Taylor, 3rd Tunnelling Company for serving his country.

They sold after twelve months and moved to Melbourne, Vic as he would be able to get work there.  They arrived on 12 December, 1925 and he worked for the City Council and she was a finisher in a clothing factory in Gertrude Street, Fitzroy and lived in a flat at 365 Brunswick Street, Fitzroy.
Horwood Taylor became a Constable of Police on 11 November, 1926 and was stationed at the North Carlton Police Station.  Mrs Taylor continued at the factory until 1928 when asked to leave by the Police authorities as wives of government employees could not work.

Their residence became 80 Gore Street, Fitzroy.  Shortly after moving there she was told that a nurse at the Children’s Hospital would give him a cup of tea in the early hours of the morning and she learned her name was Lucy Storey.   He marched in the Armistice Day Procession and later was seen talking to this lady in Carlton.  His conduct did not improve to his wife or to Miss Story as she and her mother were under the impression he was a single man. 

Constable Taylor was shot while making an arrest on 17 December, 1929 and taken to the Melbourne Hospital, Latrobe.  News of this was reported in the Court proceedings in the:



Constable went into a rage over his wife’s visit to them in October, 1930 and threatened her and broke several ornaments.  In February, 1931 he took his belongings and left his wife and went to board at Gatehouse Street, Parkville.  Mrs Taylor went to 93 Royale Parade, Parkville.  She saw his superior officer at Russell Street, Melbourne who was told he would never come back but he would not see her want.  Mrs Taylor had not spoken to her husband since August, 1931 and filed for divorce after desertion three years prior.
Notice of divorce appeared in the:


Horwood Taylor married Lucy Storey in 1936 in Melbourne, Vic.  In 1937 their address was 88 May Street, Preston.
Horwood Norman William Taylor passed away in the Victorian Police Hospital, Melbourne on 22 July, 1939 aged 47 years.  Arrangements were published in the:


Further notices also appeared in the:


An Obituary was also published in the:

A few days later the following was also published in the:


Interment took place in the Presbyterian portion D of Pine Ridge Cemetery, Coburg in grave no. 138.  There is no headstone.
The Melbourne Branch of the Repatriation Commission requested a copy of his service record from Base Records which were forwarded on 31 July, 1939.

Mrs Lucy Taylor died in 1998.  It is possible his first wife Marie Louisa Chatard may have returned to France. 

Footnote:

In 1950 an article written on the criminal history of Harold Francis Wilson also known as Louis Francis Frayne mentions his crime of wounding of Constable Horwood Taylor and appeared in the:

His brother also served.
SECOND CORPORAL JACK TAYLOR

1191 – 3rd Tunnelling Company

John Charles (Jack) Taylor was born at Westbury, Tasmania on 17 October, 1890 the son of John Charles (Jack) and Catherine Jane (nee Garrett) Taylor.  The family moved to Wynyard.

At the recruiting depot at Ross on 13 November, 1915 the single twenty-five-year-old miner applied to enlist for active service abroad with his brother Orwood Norman William Taylor and passed the medical examination.  Attestation forms describe him as 173cms (5ft 8ins) tall, weighing 73kgs (161lbs) with a chest expansion of 88-97cms (35-38½ins) and had a fair complexion with his blue eyes testing to good sight in the right eye but poorer vision in the left eye and hair was brown.  Distinctive marks were several small scars on his right shoulder blade.  Religion was Church of England.  Next-of-kin nominated was his father Mr Jack Taylor of Wynyard, Tas.  He signed and took the Oath of Allegiance the same day.

Basic training commenced at Ross camp until transferred to Claremont camp on 27 November, 1915 with names of new recruits published in the:

The brothers returned home for final leave which was reported in the:


The recruits were transferred on 16 December, 1915 to the No. 3 Company of the Mining Corps and left for Casula camp, near Liverpool, New South Wales to join other volunteers from across the country in training as a Corps.
At a civic parade in the Domain, Sydney on Saturday February 19, 1916, a large crowd of relations and friends of the departing Miners lined the four sides of the parade ground.  Sixty police and 100 Garrison Military Police were on hand to keep the crowds within bounds.  The scene was an inspiriting one. On the extreme right flank, facing the saluting base, were companies of the Rifle Club School; next came a detachment of the 4th King’s Shropshire Light Infantry, then the bands of the Light Horse, Liverpool Depot, and the Miners’ on the left, rank upon rank, the Miners’ Battalion.  

The Corps boarded HMAT A38 Ulysses in Sydney, NSW on February 20 and sailed for the European theatre.  Arriving in Melbourne, Victoria on February 22 the Miners camped at Broadmeadows for a stay of 7 days while further cargo was loaded. 

Another parade was held at the Broadmeadows camp on March 1, the Miners’ Corps being inspected by the Governor-General, as Commander-in-Chief of the Commonwealth military forces. 

Leaving Melbourne on March 1, Ulysses arrived at Fremantle, Western Australia on March 7 where a further 53 members were taken on board.  

On Wednesday March 8, 1916 the whole force, with their band and equipment, paraded at Fremantle prior to leaving Victoria Quay at 9.30 o’clock.

The ship hit a reef when leaving Fremantle harbour, stripping the plates for 40 feet and, although there was a gap in the outside plate, the inner bilge plates were not punctured.  The men on board nicknamed her ‘Useless’.  
The Miners were off-loaded and sent to the Blackboy Hill Camp where further training was conducted.

The Mining Corps comprised 1303 members at the time they embarked with a Headquarters of 40; No.1 Company – 390; No.2 Company – 380; No.3 Company – 392, and 101 members of the 1st Reinforcements.

Finally departing Fremantle on April 1, Ulysses voyaged via Suez, Port Said and Alexandria in Egypt.  The captain of the ship was reluctant to take Ulysses out of the Suez Canal because he felt the weight of the ship made it impossible to manoeuvre in the situation of a submarine attack.  The troops were transhipped to HM Transport B.1 Ansonia, then on to Valetta, Malta before disembarking at Marseilles, France on May 5, 1916.  As a unit they entrained at Marseilles on May 7 and detrained on May 11 at Hazebrouck.

A ‘Mining Corps’ did not fit in the British Expeditionary Force, and the Corps was disbanded and three Australian Tunnelling Companies were formed.  The Technical Staff of the Corps Headquarters, plus some technically qualified men from the individual companies, was formed into the entirely new Australian Electrical and Mechanical Mining and Boring Company (AEMMBC), better known as the ‘Alphabetical Company.’
He went sick with mumps to the No. 7 General Hospital at St Omer on 19 June, 1916 being discharged to Base Details and re-joined his unit on 17 July, 1916.

On December 18, 1916 the No. 3 Company was officially transferred to the 3rd Tunnelling Company.  He was in No. 4 Section and been trained as a ‘listener’ through a course at the Listening School lasting about ten days from 21 December, 1916, where they learnt to distinguish between any normal sounds created during mining operations.  The listener would be on duty at any specified post underground for a fixed period, usually a six-hour shift silently listening for sounds of underground mining by the enemy.  Detailed reports were provided of sounds heard to superiors on return to the surface.  So these sounds could be credited solely to the enemy all company work would cease while intensive listening could be carried out.  Listening posts were many and numbered to gauge from these positions the location of enemy mining activity which was accurately recorded on the Mine Plan.
He was a recipient of comfort gifts sent by the Women’s Club at Kalgoorlie and signed their letter of thanks which was re-printed in the: 

He was to be Lance Corporal on 15 April, 1917.  A further promotion took place on 27 December, 1917 to Second Corporal to complete establishment.

Lance Corporal Taylor was one of the Investigation Party as recorded in the After War Report of the 3rd Tunnelling Company:
“The investigation party consisting of 4 officers, 12 N.C.O.’s and 42 O.R’s detailed by the 3rd Aust. Tnlg Co. to search for and removed any traps or mines left by the enemy in the area occupied by the 1st Canadian Division, during the operations at Hill 70 by the Canadian Corps, assembled in forward dugouts at (N.6a.90.30) on the night of the 14th Aug. under the command of Lieut. H. Russel.

The Party was divided into 3 detachments as follows: -

 (a) 
Lieut. C.C. Shaw with 4 N.C.O.’s and 114 O.R were detailed for duty in the 2nd Canadian 


Infantry Brigade Area.

(b) 
Lt R.G.B. Ashcroft with 4 N.C.O’s and 14 O.Rs were detailed for duty in the 3rd Canadian 

 

Infantry Brigade Area.


Detachment “B” of the left Investigation Party consisted of the following:



Lt R.G.B. Ashcroft



Sgt Austin


Cpl Wayman





L/Cpl Taylor, J.

Spr Crawford, E.A.


Spr Blaney, W.


Spr Jackson, H.



Spr Moran, W.H.

Spr Moyle, H.



Spr Carden, J.


Spr Scott, T.E.



Spr Ridgewell, R.T.

Spr Hubbard, E.L.



Spr Mytton, E.J.

Spr Andrews, G.



Spr Coglan, M.


Spr Faclkens, H.D.S.



Spr C. Morris, J.B.

(c) 
Lt T. Taylor with 4 N.C.Os and 14 O.Rs were detailed to stand by the 137th Infantry Brigade, 

46th 

Division at Hulloch Tunnel in case of an enemy retirement, opposite that Brigade Front.  This detachment stood by from 9/8/17 until the 18/7/17.  It was not called upon for duty.

Two parties of 40 O.Rs of Infantry were added to Detachments (a) and (b) by the 2nd and 3rd Canadian Infantry Brigades for duty in their respective areas as sentries, runners, spoil carriers, etc.
Detachments (a) and (b) moved forward as soon as pre-arranged messages were received from the respective Brigades, viz at 5.5 am and 4.55 a.m. respectively on 15/8/17.  The first objectives were Forward Battalion Headquarters and Advanced Brigade report centre.  These objectives were reached after passing through severe enemy barrage.  Having examined the first objectives, the detachments proceeded to investigate other parts of the area captured, particularly the dugout accommodation.  No mines of traps were found, and any prisoners used in connection with the investigation denied all knowledge of mines or traps having been laid.  The work was carried out under trying circumstances and was much hampered, particularly on the 15th, and 16th Aug. by the presence of many wounded Canadians and Germans in the dugouts.
The dugouts of the Chalk Cutting at H32d. 15.20. were found to be extensive, and part had been used as a Dressing Station for wounded.  

The Cutting had been subjected to very heavy shelling by both sides and there were over 50 dead and wounded Germans there on the afternoon of 7.8.17 also a large number of machine guns.
It is possible that entrances from this cutting to dugouts have been crumped in by the heavy shelling and that further accommodation may be discovered by removing the spoil from the sides of the cutting.
An enemy defensive Mine System was examined between (H31d. 60. 30.) and (H31C. 96.55) with entrances from the enemy old front line.  This system was previously known from listening results to exist.
A survey of this system was made.  One gallery was tamped and was found to contain a charge of explosives.
The Party was most fortunate.  Only two casualties were sustained during the operations.


4502 2/Cpl Wayman, W.F. was wounded on 15.8.17.


1295 Spr    Young, J.H. was wounded on 16.8.17

In his report to the Controller of Mines, and 1st Canadian Div. etc, 1st Army, our C.O. testified to the good work done by all ranks.

He wrote that, Lieut. H Russel, officer in Charge, of the Party and Lieut. C.C. Shaw in charge of the 2nd Detachment working in the 2nd Canadian Infantry Brigade Area, were deserving of special mention, particularly in the latter, who did exceptionally good work.  Of others Major Sanderson specially mentioned 4528 Sapper C.C.M. Kerr (A.M.C.) as having done good work.

Sapper Kerr, C.C.M. while attached to the Investigation Party showed great bravery and fine comradeship.  He not only attended to and bound up the wounded of his own party but rendered first aid to over forty wounded Canadians.  He worked continuously the whole day under heavy enemy artillery and machine gun fire rendering excellent service.

4528 Sapper Kerr was awarded the Military Medal by authority Canadian Corps commander vide C.E. 7/19, A.I.F. List 261 of 20.11.17.

After the Hill 70 which commenced on the 15th of August and when all the objectives had been successfully achieved, the Investigation Party of the 3rd Aust. Tnlg Co. continued the examination of captured positions, dugouts and so on in search of booby traps and mines until the 18th, when the Party withdrew.

No mines or traps were found in the area of operation, and prisoners captured, denied any knowledge of them.”
Gifts of Comfort were also despatched to the brothers from Wynyard which was reported in the:

Three Blue Chevrons were issued to wear on his uniform for serving two years abroad on 20 February, 1918.

Another letter of thanks was signed by those who received comfort gifts from the Ladies of Kalgoorlie and published in the:

The After War Report of the 3rd Tunnelling Company mentions him again:
“On 13/8/18, the following rifle team in charge of Lieut. J.B. Shaw, M.C. was detailed to proceed to the 1st Army Musketry School at Matringhem to compete in “B” Series Competitions at the rifle ranges to be held on 13th 14th and 15th.



Lieut. J.B. Shaw


1192 Cpl Taylor, J.          [1191]

6762  Spr Brewer, J.R.   


7307  Spr Emmett, H.


6631  Spr Jones, W.E.A.


5784  Spr Millane, J.A.


4435  Spr O’Hanlow, J.K.  [O’Hanlon]


4481  Spr Suiter, R.J. 


8004  Spr Noble, N.M.”
A great deal of the credit for the success of the 3rd Aust. Tnlg. Coy’s teams in these competitions was due to Sgt Forsyth for the energetic interest he took in training the men in Bayonet exercises.

The C.O., Major Sanderson, with 5 officers and Sgt Forsyth accompanied the teams to Linghem, which consisted of:

Lieut. R. De Passey



“A” Team





“B” Team


1191
Cpl
 Taylor, J


4274
Sgt
Bickford, W


4481
Spr
Suiter, R.J.


8004
L/Cpl
Noble, N.M.


6631
Spr
Jones, W.E.A.


7653
Spr
Coe, J.P.


5784
Spr
Millane, J.A.


6071
Spr
Wentworth, D.W.


6762
Spr
Brewer, J.R.


1247
Spr
Ashford, S.F.


7307
Spr
Emmett, H


5993
Spr
Griffin, W.H.


2478
Spr
Hubbard, E.L.


5844
Spr
Tainsh, H.


The bronze medallion was awarded to Lieut. De Passey and “A” Team and the Silver medal to Lieut. De Passey and “B” Team.

The Cup will probably find a resting place in the Australian War Museum.

All prizes were suitably inscribed.”
His service continued without illness or injury and was counted in an audit of the company on 1 October, 1918 and was with his unit when Peace was declared.  The Tunnelling Companies remained on the front as part of the Army of Occupation assisting with rehabilitation of their district by clearing roads and bridges of booby traps and delayed action mines left by the enemy.

Second Corporal went injured on 15 November, 1918 to the 39th Stationary Hospital suffering from an accidental injury causing a contused left clavicle and discharged to duty on November 21.  A report on the accident was sent by the Commanding Officer to the Deputy Assistant Adjutant General on 10 December, 1918.  Another entry states he re-joined his unit from injury on 18 December.

Leave from the Furlough Department was granted and taken from 24 December, 1918 and returned to duty on 7 January, 1919.

He went sick on 4 March, 1919 to the 51st Casualty Clearing Station with acute epididymitis (infection of the epididymis generally caused by a bacterial infection causing pain, swelling and inflammation.)  On 12 March was conveyed on Ambulance Train no.5 entering the 51st General Hospital a day later.  Was transferred on March 16 to the 39th General Hospital but three days later was invalided to England on the hospital ship Gurkha and admitted to the 1st Aust Dermatological Hospital at Bulford for treatment of a social disease.  After 114 days curative care was discharged to No. 3 Group camp on 25 June, 1919.  On 14 July was re-admitted to the 1st A.D.H. as further treatment was required for another 75 days and released to No. 2 Group camp at Sutton Veny on 26 September, 1919.

After demobilisation Second Corporal Taylor embarked for Australia on 6 October, 1919 from Southampton on board H.T. Pakeha.  Base Records advised his parents on 20 October that he was returning home.  The troopship docked in Melbourne (3rd M.D.) on 25 November, 1919 with news of their arrival reported in the:

The Tasmanian soldiers left that evening for Hobart (6th Military District) and their return was covered in the:

He appeared before the Medical Board in Hobart on November 26 and his Statement of Case reads:

States: No Wounds on Service




No Sickness on Service




Feeling well now.
(Sgd.) J. Taylor


Present condition: Heart & Lungs clear


Working capacity: not at all affected



Hobart 26/11/19

Military Discharge was issued in Hobart (6th M.D.) on 18 January, 1920 on termination of his period of enlistment.

Anglesea Barracks, Hobart (6th M.D.) forwarded medical documents and dates of return and discharge to Base Records on 13 January, 1920.

The British War Medal (3363) and the Victory Medal (3366) were issued to wear to Second Corporal 1191 Jack Taylor, 3rd Tunnelling Company for serving his country.

He married on 24 December, 1921 at Burnie, Tas to Linda Jane Reynolds.

He was the breeder and owner of the winner of the Wynyard Derby and a good local footballer which were mentioned in the:


He was a linesman at Wynyard and had a lucky escape reported in the:


Missed the football match due to recovery from his injuries the previous month as mentioned in the:


A short time later that month another employee suffered the same fall and had a miraculous escape also as reported in the:

The couple were residing at Wynyard in 1937 with his occupation listed as a yardman.  A year later he was working for the Hydro-Electric Commission and had another fall reported in the:


In 1943 the couple were still at Wynyard and he was a linesman and later their address was listed in Electoral Rolls at 5 Edward Street, Wynyard, where they remained.

Snippets appear about him in the:


John Charles (Jack) Taylor, late of Wynyard passed away on 5 June 1969 aged 79 years.  Interment took place in Waratah-Wynward General Cemetery.


Mrs Linda Taylor died on 27 July, 1975.
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Examiner (Launceston) Thursday December 9, 1915


THE CLAREMONT CAMP


On November 27, 208 men, belonging partly to the Mining Corps and partly to Infantry reinforcements, were transferred from Ross to Claremont.  The following are the names of the men:


Mining Corps: O.N.W. Taylor,							Article abridged





North Western Advocate and the Emu Bay Times Wednesday November 8, 1916:


THEFT OF SOLDIERS’ COMFORTS – WHO IS TO BLAME?


Writing to his mother, Mrs John Taylor, of Wynyard, Sapper O.N.W. Taylor, who went away with the Mining Corps, complains bitterly of the non-delivery of many parcels of comforts addressed to him.  Ever since he left Tasmania his mother and other relatives have sent him parcels of warm clothing, but he had not received one.  He says— “You said in your letter that you had sent us some socks and handkerchiefs, but we did not get them.  Some of our mates’ mothers and wives have been sending them parcels of tobacco and cigarettes, but they don’t get them.  I think it is a pity that something could not be done to find out where our things are going to.  They must be stolen, for they never reach our company.  If those who are stealing the things that we need so much could see what we have to go through in wet weather they would not have the heart to ‘shake’ anything off soldiers who have come all this way to give their lived for the freedom the thieves have got.  I can’t call them anything else when they ‘shake’ a few socks and cigarettes that we need so much here. We have a good lot of clothes, but we cannot have too many socks in the winter.  We get our letters all right, but it is very seldom we ever get a parcel.  I want you to send this letter to the “Emu Bay Times” and I would like to ask the people of Australia what they think of the way they treat those who are dying for them.  The British Army is not to blame; it must be done in some post office or other.”





Examiner (Launceston) Tuesday January 2, 1917:


WOUNDED IN ACTION


Sapper W.N.W. TAYLOR, Wynyard							Article abridged





Western Argus Tuesday February 27, 1917:


COMFORTS IN TRENCHES


The secretary of the Goldfields Women’s Club, Mrs R.M. Jordan, has received the following letter of thanks written in the Firing Line, France on Dec 8 by Sergt Fred Thompson:


“I have again to thank you on behalf of my Relief and myself for gifts from the Goldfields Women’s Club.  They were distributed this morning by Corporal P. McKenzie, and the signatures of the receivers are attached.  I am writing this right up in the firing line, with shells bursting all round the dugouts, so you will please excuse pencil and hurried note.”


The undermentioned signature of men who received gifts were attached—J. Taylor, O.N. Taylor, 


Article abridged





Advocate (Burnie) Friday January 24, 1919:


“CEASE FIRE” – TOUCHING INCIDENTS IN BELGIUM


Writing to his mother, Mrs J. Taylor, of Jackson-street, Wynyard, Sapper O.N.W. Taylor narrates some touching incidents in which he took part when the news of the signing of the armistice reached the soldiers in Belgium.  He says:


“When the word came for fighting to cease, we were advancing into Belgium.  When the news came through, we had a good time; you could not tell whether I was a flag pole or a moving flower garden!   We could not move for the Belgians.  They rushed us with coffee, apples and tobacco, and pinned little flags all over us; you could not see us for flowers and flags!


The Germans were just going out of the towns as we entered, and as soon as the people saw us, they put flags all over us and all over the towns.  It was a lovely sight!  I never saw such a sight before.  It was lovely to see the poor women and girls, they were so pleased to be set free again.  We were some of the first troops that entered a number of Belgian towns, and I would not have missed it for something; it was a sight that I will never forget.  It ‘fills me up’ when I think of it.”


The writer concludes by expressing his pleasure that the war is over, and the hope that he will soon be able to get home again.





The Herald (Melbourne) September 27, 1919:


SOLDIERS WELCOMED HOME


Troops from two transports, the Ceramic and the Bakara, disembarked this morning and as they were conveyed from Port Melbourne through the city to Sturt Street in motor cars and chars-a-bancs they were warmly welcomed.


On the Ceramic there were 278 troops and 140 women and children.


The Bakara brought 300 troops.





Herald (Melbourne) Friday January 10, 1930:


ALLEGED SHOOTING OF CONSTABLE – MAN SENT FOR TRIAL – STORY OF STREET PISTOL DUEL


How he was shot down in the street by a man he was taking to the police station, was told, in the Carlton Court today, by Constable Horwood Norman William Taylor.


Harold Francis Wilson, ship’s steward, was charged with having shot with intent to murder Constable Taylor, and was committed for trial at the Supreme Court on February 17.


Wilson was sentenced to three months’ imprisonment on a charge of unlawful possession.


Constable Taylor said that on December 17, at 2.30 p.m., he was on uniform duty in Lygon Street, and saw Wilson carrying a copper wrapped in paper.  He said he got it from a man who renovated old houses.


“I told William I did not believe him, and said he had better come along with me to Carlton watchhouse,” said Taylor.  “He said: ‘All right constable: I will go along with you, as this copper is genuine, and I can prove it.’


“We then walked along Lygon and Grattan Streets, in Drummond Street and turned down towards the Carlton watchhouse.		


Contd.








Continues:


DROPPED COPPER


“When near University Street, about 200 yards from the Watch-House, he dropped the copper.  I immediately turned towards him, heard the report of a gun, and felt a stinging pain in the right groin.


“I staggered back and fell in the footpath.  I saw Wilson had a nickel-plated revolver in his right hand, similar to the one produced.  I put my hand round to my right-hand hip pocket with the intention of drawing my pistol.


“Wilson was standing about six paces away.  He fired two more shots while I was on the ground.


“I staggered to my feet, and took out my revolver.  Wilson was then running up Drummond Street.


FIRED AGAIN


“I followed him, and when I looked round the corner, he again fired a shot at me, and then ran up Drummond Street, on the right-hand side.


“After going some distance he crossed over to the left-hand side.  While crossing the road I fired a shot, but he kept on running and then disappeared into Gratton Street, towards the Exhibition Gardens.


“Later I was taken to the Melbourne Hospital.”


Constable Harry William Charles Winterton said that at 9.30 on December 20 he went to the tram shelter in Gisborne Street, East Melbourne.


Inside he saw a number of men and Wilson sitting in a corner.  Wilson took a revolver (Produced) from his right-hand pocket, and placed it on the seat behind him, said Winterton.


DUM-DUM BULLETS


“I pulled Wilson off the seat,” he added “and found the revolver loaded.  The nose of each bullet was cut with a cross, making them what are termed “dum-dum” bullets.”


In an alleged statement to Detective Hogg, read in court, Wilson said Taylor stopped him with the copper and took him to the Carlton watchhouse.				


“In Drummond Street,” the statement continued, “I drew a revolver, pointed it at Taylor, and said “you’d better hop off!”  Taylor crouched down, and put his hand in his hip pocket.  I fired at the window at the side of him, and ran away, Taylor followed me, and fired.  I fired two more shots.  As I was turning a corner, I heard a bullet strike a brick wall.”








Sun News-Pictorial (Melbourne) Friday September 13, 1935:


ANOTHER LONG LIST OF DIVORCES


Marie Louise Taylor, 42, of Victoria Street, East Brunswick, against Horwood Norman William Taylor, 45 of Gatehouse Street, Parkville, police constable – desertion.





Sun News-Pictorial Monday July 24, 1939:


FUNERAL NOTICES


TAYLOR—Members of the State Police Service Sub-Branch of the R.S.S.I.L.A., are invited to attend the funeral of their late comrade Horwood Norman William Taylor.  The funeral will leave Allison’s Parlors, West Melbourne TODAY (Monday), July 14, 1939, at 3.30 for Coburg Cemetery.





Age (Melbourne) Monday July 24, 1939:


DEATHS


TAYLOR—On July 22, at Police Hospital, St Kilda-road, Melbourne, Horwood Norman dearly beloved husband of Lucy Taylor, of No. 88 May-street, West Preston, loved father of James Norman. (Late of Victorian Police Force.)


FUNERAL NOTICES


TAYLOR—Members of the State Police Service Sub-branch R.S.S.I.L.A., are invited to the funeral of their late comrade, HORWOOD NORMAN WILLIAM TAYLOR, leaving Allison’s Parlors THIS DAY (Monday), July 24, at 3.30 p.m.





Sun News-Pictorial (Melbourne) Monday July 24, 1939:


POLICEMAN DIES SUDDENLY – ONE SHOT BY PRISONER


FIRST-CONSTABLE HORWOOD NORMAN WILLIAM TAYLOR, 47 of South Wharf Police, died in the Police Hospital on Saturday morning only a few hours after he had finished work.


Constable Taylor suffered a haemorrhage at his home in May Street, Preston, and died soon after being taken to the hospital.


During his 13 years’ service Constable Taylor had been stationed at Carlton, and South Melbourne.  Several years ago he was shot in the groin by a prisoner he was taking to Carlton watchhouse.  Later the man was sentenced to 10 years’ imprisonment and a flogging.  Taylor was officially commended for his bravery.


Taylor is survived by his wife and one child.


Constable Taylor will be buried at Coburg today.  The funeral will leave Alfred Allison’s funeral parlors, corner of Victoria and William Streets, West Melbourne, at 3.30 p.m.





Sun News-Pictorial Monday July 31, 1939:


DEATHS


TAYLOR—On July 22, at Victorian Police Hospital, Melbourne, Horwood Norman William Taylor, 88 May St., West Preston, dearly loved husband of Lucy, loved father of Jim.  Sadly missed.  Tasmanian papers please copy.





Truth (Sydney) Sunday May 21, 1950:


POLICE FIND MINOR ARMORY, AND GUNMAN GOES OFF TO GOAL


Illicit mail order deals in lethal weapons between a South Australian gun store and a notorious gunman in Sydney were uncovered by police when they seized a minor Armory in a room at the Lady Gowrie Convalescent Home at Gordon on May 10.


The discovery by detectives of a German Mauser pistol, a Colon automatic pistol, a silencer for a .22 calibre ammunition, put the finger on a 43-year-old kitchen hand, Louis Francis Frayne.


Frayne is identical with Harold Francis Wilson, who was sentenced to 10 years goal and the lash in 1930 for the cold-blooded shooting with dum-dum bullets of a Melbourne police man.					Cont’d





Continues:


In the “big house” the flashy Wilson behaved so badly after being cut 12 times with the cat o’ nine tails that the term was extended to 12 years.	


YOUNG HOODLUM


At North Sydney Court on Thursday he was sentenced to a total of two years and three months’ goal for possession of the pistols and silencer, but because the terms were made concurrent, he will only serve 12 months—his first long stretch since his release form Pentridge in 1942.


A gun-crazy young slum product, Wilso became an apprentice gangster in Melbourne underworld during the vicious reign of “Squizzy” Taylor early in the “roaring twenties.”


The Carlton stripling had tried his hand at housebreaking, shop breaking, receiving, unlawful possession and before 1925 had his first conviction for “packing a rod.”


He was 19 when he got three months’ hard labor for burglary.


During the next four years Wilson was riding high and kept clear of the police, but it must have been a dull period just before Christmas 1929.  Police Const. Horwood Norman William Taylor met him on the night of December 17 carrying a laundry copper through the streets of Carlton.	


He arrested the young hoodlum on suspicion, but on the way to the watchhouse Wilson broke away and whipping out a nickel-plated revolver shot the constable in the groin.


Before he escaped into the gloom Wilson fired more shots from a distance of six paces at the policeman writhing on the pavement.


On the night of December 30, 1929, Wilson was arrested by Det-Sgt H.W. Winterton as he sat with a number of men in an East Melbourne tram shelter.


The detective said Wilson took a fully loaded revolver from his pocket and placed it on the seat.  Dum-dum bullets were found in the gunman’s pockets when he was searched.


At a preliminary hearing Wilson was charged with shooting at Taylor with intent to murder, but at his trial in February, 1930, the charge was broken down to one of wounding with intent to inflict grievous bodily harm.


Wilson was sentenced to 10 years’ imprisonment and 12 stroke of the “cat.”  On his release he was claimed by the Indeterminate Sentences Board and went back in again for two years.


Adopting the alias of Louis Francis Frayne he made for South Australia for his first taste of freedom in 12 years.  But the last and four walls had not killed his passion for guns.  In 1944 he was convicted for carrying an unlicensed pistol and fined £10.


Then Wilson thought he would try a more prosaic way of earning a living and came to Sydney.  About a year ago he took a job as kitchen hand in the Lady Gowrie Convalescent Home, where the matron said his conduct had been exemplary.


On May 10 Detective Fred Bradstreet and Det. Ken Rickard, of the C.I.B., saw Wilson in the shopping centre at Chatswood.  Questioning led the police to Wilson’s room at the home—once the palatial mansion of Mr John Woolcott Forbes.


GUILT PLEA


Det. Bradstreet said in court on Thursday that Wilson admitted having obtained the Mauser and ammunition by mail from a gun dealer, Donald Fleetwood, of The Grange, Adelaide, whom he had met during his sojourn in South Australia.


The detective said that South Australian police had confirmed the deals when they interviewed Fleetwood to check Wilson’s story.


In statements to the police Wilson confessed that he purchased the Mauser for £10 and hoped to sell it and the Colon (a Spanish copy of the American Colt) for anything up to £30 to the right person.


He said he had tried selling the weapons to men who hung about the Manly wharves at night and had carried the Mauser to Harold Park where a well-dressed man who frequents trotting meetings offered to give him £20 for it.  But the sale fell through.


Slightly built Wilson, or Frayne, who was dressed in a brown suit and collarless shirt shrugged when Mr Thornton, S.M., asked if he had anything to say.  “I have pleaded guilty.  That’s enough,” he said.


Said Mr Thornton, imposing sentence: “This is a serious state of affairs.  You admit you intended selling the weapons to questionable characters.”





Examiner Thursday December 9, 1915:


THE CLAREMONT CAMP


On November 27, 208 men, belonging partly to the Mining Corps and partly to Infantry reinforcements, were transferred from Ross to Claremont.  The following are the names of the men:


Mining Corps: O.N.W. Taylor, J. Taylor, J. 						             Article Abridged





North Western Advocate and the Emu Bay Times Saturday December 11, 1915:


WYNYARD


Ptes O. and Jack Taylor, sons of Mrs Taylor, of Wynyard, and formerly of Waratah, are now home on leave.  They will probably leave for the front on December 18.





Western Argus Tuesday February 27, 1917:


COMFORTS IN TRENCHES


The secretary of the Goldfields Women’s Club, Mrs R.M. Jordan, has received the following letter of thanks written in the Firing Line, France on Dec 8 by Sergt Fred Thompson:


“I have again to thank you on behalf of my Relief and myself for gifts from the Goldfields Women’s Club.  They were distributed this morning by Corporal P. McKenzie, and the signatures of the receivers are attached.  I am writing this right up in the firing line, with shells bursting all-round the dugouts, so you will please excuse pencil and hurried note.”


The undermentioned signatures of men who received gifts were attached—J. Taylor, O.N. Taylor   


Article abridged





North Western Advocate and the Emu Bay Times Monday February 11, 1918:


WYNYARD – REMEMBRANCE EVENING


The committee of the Remembrance Evening despatched parcels to the following men at the front last week:


Sappers Jack Taylor, J.L. Cross, O.N.W. Taylor and L.V. Ramskill			        Article abridged





Sun (Kalgoorlie) Sunday May 19, 1918:


Mrs R.M. Jordan, the secretary of the No. 1 Tunnellers Trench Comforts Committee, has received the following list of names of soldiers who have received parcels sent by the committee—J. Taylor,	       Article abridged





Advocate (Burnie) Tuesday November 25, 1919:


STILL THEY COME! – TRANSPORTS REACH MELBOURNE


Greeted with enthusiasm, 350 Victorians, who landed from the Pakeha this morning were taken through the city by motor cars and on arrival at the depot were dealt with quickly.  They said that the voyage had been quiet and comfortable.


The troops for N.S. Wales and Queensland left during the morning by special trains.  The Tasmanians will continue their journey to Hobart to-night.





Mercury (Hobart) Thursday November 27, 1919:


WELCOME TO SOLDIERS – TROOPS FROM THE PAKEHA


A very large crowd gathered at the King’s pier yesterday morning to welcome home the Tasmanian troops arriving by the H.T. Pakeha.  The vessel drew alongside at a little after 10 a.m., and the men were soon in the embrace of their happy relatives.  When family welcomes had been said, the men were motored through the city to the Town-hall, where they were officially welcomed in the main hall.


The Mayor (Alderman H.G. Shield) presided at the official welcome, and on the platform with him were Archdeacon Whitington (representing the soldiers), Colonel Wanline (State Commandant) and Colonel Lord.  The Mayor said he was glad to see the boys coming back as happy and victorious.  Tasmania had sent 12,810 men to the front.


The National Anthem completed the function.


The men to arrive were: 2Cpl, Taylor, J., 3rd T.C.						            Article abridged





Advocate (Burnie) Wednesday September 7, 1926:


FANCIERS’ TIT BITS


Most of the Coast clubs have either flown their annual Derby or are right on the job at present.  Jack Taylor, one of the Wynyard’s star footballers, was the breeder and owner of the Wynyard club Derby winner.





Advocate (Burnie) Saturday June 30, 1928:


WYNYARD


Mr Jack Taylor, who had a remarkable escape from death on Wednesday last, had recovered sufficiently yesterday to be able to leave the Spencer Hospital.  Mr Taylor, it will be remembered, was working on an electric power pole near the Mt Lyell Hotel, when he received a shock which knocked him back into the live wires, where he was suspended for some moments, and then fell to the ground.  It appeared that he was badly injured, but he escaped with burns, bruises and shock.  He also injured a joint of a toe, probably in the fall.  However, he intimated yesterday that he would be playing football again as soon as that was all right.





Advocate (Burnie) Friday July 20, 1928:


WYNYARD V. BURNIE


The Wynyard club will have its first “at home” match for some weeks to-morrow, when they will meet Burnie at the Recreation Ground.  Although the “Red and Whites” will be with the services of their captain and coach, Jack Gale, who is at present suffering from influenza and also Jack Taylor, who has not yet recovered from a recent accident, it is expected that they will extend Burnie, and local supporters of the game are looking forward to an even contest and a good game. 							


Article abridged





Advocate (Burnie) Saturday July 28, 1928:


REMARKABLE ESCAPE


The second miraculous escape from death experience by employee of the Table Cape Council within a few weeks occurred yesterday afternoon, when a young married man named Harry Holstrum, who was working on an electric light pole, came in contact with a high-powered wire, causing him to fall head first to the ground, a distance of about 30 feet.


It is singular that Holstrum was working with Jack Taylor, who had a similar miraculous escape from death some weeks ago, and assisted in taking him to the hospital, while Taylor was one of the first on the scene yesterday afternoon and assisted in recovering Holstrum to the hospital.





Examiner (Launceston) Tuesday October 4, 1938:


WYNYARD


FALL FROM LADDER—While working on Friday Jack Taylor, of Wynyard, employed by the Hydro-Electric Commission, fell from a ladder to a cement floor.  After having his wrists X-rayed at the Spencer Hospital he was allowed to go home.





Advocate (Burnie) Thursday July 1, 1948:


SOCIAL NOTES


Mr Jack Taylor, of Edward Street, Wynyard, is recovering after an operation in the Launceston General Hospital.  He was recently visited by his mother, who has since returned home.





Advocate (Burnie) Monday June 15, 1953:


A.I.F. VETERANS AT REUNION





�





Caption reads:


“The only three 1914-18 war veterans – and all Jacks – at the 12th Australian Field Company Royal Australian Engineers’ re-union in the Wivenhoe Hall on Saturday night.  Left to right: Messrs. Jack Taylor (Wynyard), Jack Fiddler, M.H.A. (Burnie), and Jack Wells (Wynyard).”








Waratah-Wynyard General Cemetery, Tasmania


Photo supplied by OzBurials Website and used with permission








